REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT
MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 14, 2003

A meeting of the Water District Commission was held on August 14, 2003 at the Bedford
Meeting Room. Present were Chairperson-Marilyn Peterman (Ambherst), Fred Britton
(Nashua), Jean-Guy Bergeron (Pelham), Mike Scanlon (Bedford), Andrew Singelakis
(NRPC), Dennis McCarthy (Raymond), Frank Byron (Litchfield), Cynthia Herman
(Milford), Jay Minkarah (Merrimack), Mary Jeffery (Hollis), Kevin Waterhouse
(Windham), Karen White (Research Team — Bedford) and Fred Hast for Fred Welch
(Pittsfield).

Chairperson Peterman called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. and we have a new person
at the table tonight Fred Hast a selectmen from Pittsfield.

Chairperson Peterman stated there is no public for public time.

Karen White stated when she sent out the charter you could see that | did have Chip
Sullivan review various sections that you had requested. On the issue that you
specifically wanted me to ask him, can the District lien property for nonpayment of water
bills and he said yes that we could. He said Pennichuck could not, but this is one of those
instances in which we are treated like a municipality and municipalities can lien property
and so can we.

Chairperson Peterman stated we will skip to the minutes of July 24, 2003. Chairperson
Peterman asked if there are any corrections. Kevin Waterhouse stated it should be noted
in the minutes that where it says Jean-Guy that should be Kevin Waterhouse.
Chairperson Peterman asked if there were any other corrections. Kevin Waterhouse made
a motion to accept the minutes of July 24, 2003 and Mary Jeffery seconded. Vote taken,
all in favor, minutes approved.

Chairperson Peterman stated the next item on the agenda is for a discussion and once
again Karen thought perhaps this would be a good thing to discuss and | agree. There
maybe a period of time that we may need some funds whether it is for bond counsel,
opinions or another legal opinion for anything else we need in the future. Perhaps this is
a good time to at least start this discussion and then we can go out to our respective Town




REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES — August 14, 2003- Page 2

Fred Hast asked what dollar figure are we looking at? Chairman Peterman stated she
wasn’t quite sure. Karen do you have any thoughts? Chairman Peterman stated it
depends on how many of us are going to contribute. Karen White stated that Nashua has
been paying a bond counsel and the Board of Alderman just appropriated $175,000 for a
law firm Devine, Millimet & Branch to work on the offer and the purchase and sale
agreement. | know that one legal opinion on whether we can buy the regulated utilities or
not ran about $5,000 dollars. A bond counsel opinion runs about $20,000 dollars. It is
possible we might need an attorney to work with the Atty General office when we submit
this Charter for approval by the OG’s office which has to come after we finish it and
really before our Towns can adopt it. If | were asked for a figure, which | cannot
document, | would say $50,000 dollars. Chairperson Peterman stated as a total number
or an amount from each Town? Karen stated so we are not duplicating what Nashua is
spending. Chairperson Peterman stated that $50,000 dollar number is what all the
Towns, not $50,000 from each Town, would share. Karen stated correct. Chairperson
Peterman stated again depending on how many Towns actually decide to participate
going forward would depend upon how much each Town would have to come up with.
Kevin Waterhouse stated a minimum of $6,000 if we have 15 Towns and maximum of
$10,000 if we get down to 10 Towns.

Frank Byron stated what he is thinking, if 1 am going to try to sell this at least to
Litchfield, 1 need to know what it is based on and | know that this is off the top of your
head. | think we need to document what it is we expect to run up for bills as a District.
The other thing we need to consider and | am concerned about is we need to consider
how we as a District hold money. There is nothing in our MOU that states how we are
going to hold money or raise money for that matter and we need to keep this separate, we
need to keep the monies accounted for, all types of fun stuff and we need to structure
that. | am not saying we need to get something fancy.

Karen asked does that mean that we need to appoint a Treasurer? Frank Byron responded
if we were going to collect money | would think we would want a Treasurer, somebody
has to disperse checks, we have to figure out who this person is | would say the Chairman
with the Vice Chairman’s signature or something along that line. Karen White stated that
sounds reasonable.

Chairperson Peterman stated she has two points, obviously we need to go to our
respective Council and Boards and we need some documentation on what we are going to
spend this for and then the other is a structure with the MOU to hold the money whether
this is a treasurer and who signs checks. Karen stated should the District get formed then
each Town’s contribution can be submitted for reimbursement. We may want an attorney
meeting with the Atty General as they go through the Charter after we draft it. We may
need some other legal opinions on things. We may need to do mailings.

Cynthia Herman asked the question, if we are being optimistic and you have the room set
for October here and we are really planning to push that fast, we are talking about
needing money certainly sooner than Town Meetings or even the budget process.
Chairperson Peterman stated she is not sure when we need the money, this is why we are



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES — August 14, 2003- Page 3

having this discussion. None of us that | know of have put anything in our budgets
during the last cycle, so whether there is any money available in any of the present
budgets would depend on that particular Town. In Amherst, for example, we have a legal
budget and | can’t say we may be able to spare $6,000 dollars out of it right now, we
might or might now, but what are the thoughts on when we need it? Karen stated the
bond amount that is borrowed would include the cost of purchasing the assets plus the
expenses that have gone into it. Jean Guy stated the expense part even if it is two years
from now the Town can still re-coup. Chairperson Peterman stated and Bedford, for
example has put up a considerable amount. They have hosted the meetings, they have
gone to the counsel, and any expenses that we have for legal counsel will be billed and
reimbursed. Going back to Cynthia’s question about the need for the money and when.
Frank stated from Litchfield’s perspective, we deal with senate bill 2, so we end up on the
schedule having deliberative sessions in early February and we would need to have
something no later than December. | think our last meeting with the budget committee is
around Thanksgiving from the Town perspective and then they go on to the school
budget from there. We can obviously come back after that up until December time
frame. Chairperson Peterman stated if we were working with next years budget. Karen
stated in Bedford the Dept. heads are already meeting to put together the outline for next
year’s budget trying to figure out if we are ordered to level fund it, what goes and what
stays and then through the fall it will go to Council and then a public hearing.

Chairperson Peterman stated Cynthia does have a good question, because if we need the
money prior to March, then it has to be money that we try to find in the present budget.
Frank Byron then asked the question, could you take money out of an existing budget that
has not been earmarked and give it to the District, because that is really what you are
saying you are doing. Karen White stated that is what Bedford has been doing now and
has been doing for the last year. Frank Byron stated |1 am not sure, | am only speaking for
Litchfield, but I am not sure whether the municipal budget act allows you to do that.
Chairman Peterman stated that is different story as you have a municipal budget;
Ambherst doesn’t have the municipal budget. Chairman Peterman stated SB2 and
Municipal budgets are different and she asked Cynthia what Milford has? Cynthia stated
she doesn’t know. Chairperson Peterman stated Amherst is not a municipal budget
Town, we are SB2, but the fact is, we have a legal account. | would ask my Town
administrator if it would be appropriate for us to take money out of that budget for legal
issues because we are not a District yet. Frank stated you have to be careful how you do
it, what you are talking about doing is to take a chunk of money out of your budget, turn
it over to the Regional District and that | do not think is legal. What is legal is if you pay
a portioned amount of that for legal considerations. Chairperson Peterman stated we are
not turning it over to the District, because there is no District. Karen stated that is why
we are bringing it up now. Chairperson Peterman stated we are a group of Towns who
have come together to discuss forming a District, we are in the need of legal opinions,
and so we really are not a District yet. Karen stated you are representing your Town with
that money.

Dennis McCarthy stated they had a similar situation when we provided some money to
Bedford and under what line were we suppose to take it from and our people said, Dues



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 4

and Membership if you have a line similar to that. That was how they took care of it, it
wasn’t a big issue.

Jean-Guy stated that Pelham is also an SB2 Town and could | suggest that we do a survey
of our legal budgets and ask our boards what we do have left if there is a potential of
having some funds there to fund this and maybe at our next meeting we could all report
back and give us an idea about what is available now if anything.

Chairperson Peterman responded that Amherst’s fiscal year starts in July so Amherst
budget is brand new so we really haven’t spent a whole lot yet. | am sure my Town
administrator will be able to see where in this years budget that is one issue and/or having
another item put into the budget or warrant for the next budget cycle. Perhaps if we talk
about a small amount up until March, still we don’t have it available until the following
July, but maybe we could get a smaller amount that we can use now, which would be
easier to find and then put something in our budgets for next year as well. Karen White
stated she has no idea what is coming up, but because we are working on our budgets.
Last December we were trying to get Towns to plan on some money and it was just too
late in everyone’s budget process. Nashua has been funding the big bills; Bedford has
been funding the little bills. Raymond sent us a check. Ambherst sent us $100 for that ad,
but now is the time to start thinking about it. It seems like we always have needs.

Chairperson Peterman stated for those of you that were here when we were forming the
MOU to begin with, I think it was Mike who brought up the fact that perhaps we should
have some funding to go along with it and at that particular time we all felt that we didn’t
want to muddy the works to form this cooperative effort by putting warrants on the Town
meeting, but I think now that we have been in this for a while, | think we have to make
some commitments.

Dennis stated $50,000 dollars makes sense, we have 14 Towns right now, and a few may
drop out because there is money involved. 1 think you would be remiss if you didn’t
budget $5,000 dollars. Everyone knows there is going to be a cost at some point.

Jay asked Karen the question about the expense that Bedford has covered. Could you
give us an idea of what the history of cost has been so we can present that as some sort of
basis for why we need X dollars. Karen responded stating Bedford has spent about
$16,000 dollars on legal fees and about $1,200 on stenographer fees and about $400 on
copying charges and we didn’t figure in the room and this is since last December.

Frank Byron stated all of those figures we need to tally up and then figure out how to
apportion that to the various municipalities whether we do it by a straight division 15 or
16 or we do it by whatever apportion that people feel comfortable with. 1 also would like
to suggest that we start to look for an attorney as a group. | think we should start to
interview attorney’s make a decision and then see what the retainer fees would cost. We
can easily use that as part of the budgeting figures. To your point Madam Chairman fund
that out of legal line items that exists already in the communities until our fiscal year
starts, but at least if we have some type of retainer fee mechanism we can then



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 5

understand exactly how much it is going to cost us going forward and we can budget that
amount as an ongoing fund for the 04 budget.

Karen White stated this would be an attorney to represent us as a group before we
become a District or would it be towards the goal of having that attorney or firm
represent the District once it is formed? Frank responded that Chip is doing some of this
under his good will type basis and that is fine and that could work going forward, but at
some point in the very near future we are going to have to have some of the Charter
reviewed in more detail. We are already talking about legal advice that we have to get
here and there. We need an attorney, we brought it up several meetings ago when
Nashua was hiring their attorney we discussed the idea that the structure that Nashua uses
for the purchase of Pennichuck needs to be looked at to make sure that it slides over to
the District without complications. Those types of items | think an attorney can answer
for us and give us guidance on that. The other thing that I think is a benefit is that that
attorney isn’t like for example, Jay Hoytist who represents Litchfield and is giving the
benefit of the doubt to Litchfield, he would represent all of us who are part of the
consortium so we are comfortable hearing what they have to say and going forward from
there. | think this will benefit us starting to consider hiring an attorney.

Chairperson Peterman stated that attorney for example is not the same attorney as a bond
counsel, which is another attorney. Karen stated it might have to be several or one big
firm with lots of talent. Frank Byron said if you think about it, we are talking about
forming a municipality that is the largest municipality in the State. So maybe we do need
a big firm.

Chairperson Peterman stated we need a couple of things, 1) we need a break down of
what kind of expenses we will have to fund within the next 6 months which is in the
present budget.

Fred Britton stated in Nashua we are getting advise from bond counsel, from financial
counsel and now Devine, Millimet & Branch and of course our own legal department so
there is at least three areas, financial advise, bond counsel advise and acquisition advise.
Those are three areas that we are paying for at this time. The last amount as Karen
mentioned was about $170,000 we budgeted $120 in the *04 budget and we had $50,000
escrowed into "04. This will give you an idea.

Chairperson Peterman stated that $50,000 dollars is sounding like a small number now.
Fred Britton stated maybe some of what Nashua is finding out legally can be shared and
not have to be duplicated. Chairperson Peterman stated we need to have some definitive
request when we go to the boards and some criteria to share with them. Fred Britton
stated we gave you our statement of work for the proposal for the bid that Devine,
Millimet & Branch and put together for us, that was passed out a few meetings ago, you
could use some bullets from that if you wanted to as far as acquisition advise. If you
would like, 1 can ask for some bulleted items for the financial advise and bulleted items
for bond counsel if you want to be shared with the committee.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES — August 14, 2003- Page 6

Karen stated that would be great and also if you could find out what information these
various counsels would be able to share with us and what information that wouldn’t
share, so we know what doesn’t have to be duplicated. Then maybe we interview some
law firms before we set our final number.

Chairperson Peterman asked if Fred could have it at the next meeting, which is in two
weeks. Fred stated he would get that information together.

Mike Scanlon asked about a retainer fee? Fred Britton stated he doesn’t think they gave
him a retainer; we had $50,000 dollars available to start the study. | am not sure how
much we gave them as a retainer or whether we gave them anything as a retainer. Karen
responded, but you have appropriated $175,000 dollars for the scope of work they have
given you. Fred stated yes.

Fred stated that the proposed services were:

Review with Nashua the strategic objectives of the acquisition and the means to
achieve them; Assist Nashua and its financial advisors as necessary in reviewing the
businesses, assets and finance of Pennichuck; as determined and requested by Nashua,
analyze and resolve the statutory and constitutional issues regarding the acquisition; as
determined and requested by Nashua, negotiate, on behalf of Nashua, a definitive
acquisition agreement with Pennichuck; as determined and requested by Nashua, perform
due diligence regarding the assets to be acquired, including reviews of real estate records;
and as determined and requested by Nashua, represent Nashua before the New
Hampshire Public Utilities Commission as necessary to implement the agreement. That
is with Devine, Millimet & Branch.

Chairperson Peterman stated we also need advise finally on this Charter that we are
putting together which is a separate.

Fred Britton stated Nashua expect Devine, Millimet & Branch, to be in the Mayor’s
office on the 19", which is next week with information that can be used in this proposal.
They may not have the proposal complete, they may have the pieces and parts that need
to be discussed, but shortly thereafter we should have it, because the target is by the end
of the month to have the offer over to Pennichuck, so we are moving as far as we can.
Hopefully they will have everything on the 19"

Chairperson Peterman asked how much of that will be public? Fred Britton stated it is
still confidential. | don’ t know when it will be released. | am sure once the offer is
made public then that is going to have to come out. Chairperson Peterman stated besides
the review of the Charter, then there is the review, by somebody, with whatever proposal
is made to Pennichuck has been reviewed with respect to it being turned over to the
District. I would think that that counsel would take that into consideration when you are
making that proposal. Fred stated | know that wording is not in that statement of work,
but that is our intention. Chairperson Peterman stated and the Mayor stated that.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 7

Fred Britton stated he understands that Karen and yourself met with the Mayor within the
last 2 weeks. Karen stated it was about 3 weeks ago, because we expressed concern that
we had learned that Nashua was going forward to try and structure and make an offer and
our question was what if we don’t know the structure of the offer as a group of Towns,
what happens if Nashua makes the offer, it is accepted and it is not satisfactory to the
remainder of the Towns shouldn’t you make your offer known or allow one person
representing the group to sit at the negotiating table. They said no we couldn’t allow one
of you to sit at the negotiating table right now, because basically you have no legal status
until our Charter is finished being written, approved by the AG’s office and adopted by at
least two communities. They did suggest that we try to identify as a group what we feel
would be the critical elements in an offer and to share that.

Chairperson Peterman stated that will be on the Agenda for the meeting coming up,
Karen was going to gather a little bit of information, Chip Sullivan was also going to
gather a little bit of information visa ve employees, how and where they are part of the
Pennichuck Corporation which then becomes part of the District. Karen stated one thing
that Bedford has always felt strongly about is trying to have Pennichuck be employees of
the District as opposed to some separate company out there, a lot of different ideas have
been talked about, but in the best of all possible worlds, we feel that the Pennichuck
employees would work better, be more loyal and it would be a more seamless
arrangement if they can, as a group be employees of the District keeping their own
unions, their own benefits, their own retirement, but I have never checked all of that out
with the say the State Labor Relations Board, NH Municipal and those types of things, so
before recommending to the group that we think that might be a crucial thing in a
contract, we need to find out the legal particulars.

Chairperson Peterman stated so we are in the process of doing some of those things and
whether it is the next meeting or the one that follows, we will be addressing the issue of
what would not be acceptable to the Towns in the District as part of the arrangement. It
is a little difficult because they are operating without us, but they did assure us that their
goal is to have an offer and a deal that would be able to be turned over to the District
because that has been the ultimate goal all along.

Fred Britton stated a lot of it is confidential. | can say this much, it is still a challenge.
The challenge part is the three regulated vs. the two unregulated. | can tell you much, it
is still a challenge dealing with that issue and a lot of you are aware of why.

Andrew responded that it is important to have that conversation as soon as possible. How
quickly is an offer going to be made and what did the Mayor say at the signing today, it is
coming up pretty quick. Fred Britton stated from attending the last internal committee
that almost everything that we need is suppose to be ready on the 19". Andrew stated so
it is happening next week. Fred responded, but whether or not it will be a formal bid, it
may come with a lot of pieces and data that is needed and even some alternative
recommendations, but then the internal committee would have to say this is the direction
that we want to go in and then put that 10-12 page proposal or bid together and schedule
a time. Andrew asked at what point is that public, it is still private. Fred Britton said he



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES — August 14, 2003- Page 8

is not sure when it is going to be made public. It would seem to him that once, if it
becomes a favorable offer immediately 1 think those terms would probably be available.
Karen stated that our next meeting might even be to late? Frank asked too late for what?
Karen stated too late if this group wants to outline some critical issues that the Mayor
offered that we do. Frank stated | would say your late now, because if there is going to
be an offer available next week, it is already too late.

Chairperson Peterman stated the only thing we need to remember is the District that
forms has the right to not accept the terms or the offer that Nashua puts on. If we don’t
like those terms, the group of Towns can go to the PUC to oppose. If they come up with
a deal that we don’t feel is what we would like to see for the entire District that is the
recourse. Karen stated that seems backwards. Chairperson Peterman stated it does, but
for whatever reason they feel they are going forward this way, that is the way they are
going forward and | don’t think there is anything that they are doing that they think is not
in the best interest of the District, but we won’t know that until we see that and without
having the information we cannot make those decisions. | think we can come up with
certain criteria and | don’t think it is too late, because we don’t know if Pennichuck is
going to like whatever they put on the table.

Jay stated frankly we are not in any bargaining position whatsoever. Basically what is
happening now is we are nothing and the City of Nashua is moving forward unilaterally
to make an offer and | don’t think that we necessarily have a bargaining position
afterwards, even if we say no and we decide to go to the PUC and complain, if
Pennichuck has accepted an offer, | don’t know that we have a lot to say. Putting that
aside, |1 want to go back to a point that Karen made earlier, because this is a part of my
concern the comment we have no standing. When we talk about spending money or we
talk about hiring attorneys, what are we? We are not a thing. | don’t know how we can
hire legal counsel, presumably if we hirer legal counsel that would be hiring an attorney
to jointly represent each individual municipality. I’m not saying we can’t do it. | am
struggling with how we can do this and how can we do that and avoid conflict. How can
an attorney represent this diverse group of individual municipalities that have divergent
interest? Karen responded for the right amount of money, they would find a way. Jay
stated it is very clear that we may have interests that are going to collide and it is
something to think about. Does it make sense for us to move forward and make
ourselves something that does have standing before we create this District? The reality
is, from what | am seeing, we are not going to agree on a final Charter, | don’t think until
Nashua has done everything that it is going to do. | don’t see us agreeing on a
representative formula anytime in the near future and it has taken us a long time to get us
where we are. | am afraid that if we wait until we have reached a Charter agreement on
how to run a Water District that we are never going be in anything. 1 just contemplate
whether we should create a legal entity out of the municipalities that are willing to
participate on the basis of a future intention to create a Water District and maybe on a
couple of pages of a Charter that we can agree on beforehand. | am just tossing this out, |
am very concerned at this point that we are never going to have the standing to sit at the
table until this whole deal is well done.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES — August 14, 2003- Page 9

Frank stated that Jay has raised several different questions and maybe | can try to clarify
some of them. In terms of hiring a legal representation for the District. Your right the
District hasn’t been formed yet, but I think one of the things we talked about before you
came in was that we need a mechanism of how to disperse funds, how do we collect
funds, how do we hold funds and everything else, which I think goes beyond the MOU.
The MOU 1 think is at least a starting point for how somebody would represent the
District rather than end up representing specific Towns who would form the District. |
think it is important that we step beyond the MOU if we are going to start to collect
money and put some things in place and | would agree with Jay that that would be
something that we would have to do prior to the finalization of any Charter document
going through the AG’s office or anything along that line. So I think there is another step
that has to be taken and maybe Jay and | agree on that.

Chairperson Peterman asked Frank what is that? Frank said we need to form ourselves as
a legal entity in some fashion and the legal entity may not have any rights for doing
things like negotiating with Nashua. Chairperson Peterman asked what kind of an entity
is it that we join together to have. Kevin Waterhouse responded Friends of the Regional
Water District. Frank stated you could form pretty much anything you want.

Andrew asked why couldn’t the MOU be expanded? Frank stated the MOU could be
expanded and inclusive of other types of things that we are talking about now, but again
you need an attorney to give you advise on that.

Frank Byron stated that he did want to address two points; one is the point that Jay raised
in terms of Nashua and where we stand on that. | agree we don’t have legal standing in
that matter right now, but we as a group or as individuals could go to the PUC, but I don’t
consider that as good relationship building with Nashua and | think that, to be honest with
you, that would be an issue. | think the other thing that the group needs to be aware of, at
least from my perspective, if Nashua purchases Pennichuck and comes to agreements
with Pennichuck, those agreements don’t have any influence whatsoever upon the
Regional District, that is a separate negotiation that goes on. Nashua could pay let’s say
$100 billion dollars for the sake of argument, we say well that isn’t a fair price and come
back with our own price and that is the price that Nashua and the Regional District would
have to dicker over.

Cynthia Herman stated she is trying to figure out the legal fees and what counsel is doing
what. In the scenario that we have going on right now, Nashua has the ability and
responsibility to hirer counsel that is going to look at what is absolutely bar nothing in the
best interest of Nashua and then move forward and say this is how we should roll this out
so that it works well so we can flow this into a Water District and all of the expenses
incurred in that process get to be charged to the Water District. What | am starting to
gleam from what we are having in conversations with what the individual Towns are
going to be able to do, I am going to have to pay for my own counsel to sit back and say,
okay what is best for Milford and then collectively we will put together money that we
get to charge to the Water District that says what is best for the District.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 10

Fred stated that Nashua actually is trying to protect more than Nashua’s interest. We
firmly believe that we are going to be able to get back the money we have invested in
legal fees and studies as part of the revenue bond that is issued to buy Pennichuck and
then when the District buys Pennichuck or when it is transferred to the District there will
be revenue bonds again and legal fees that the Towns will be able to get back as part of
that revenue bond. 1 look at it as protecting more than just Nashua’s interest. The three
regulating utilities cover a lot of communities and Nashua is not trying to do anything to
hurt any of those communities.

Chairperson Peterman asked Cynthia a question. If you hire your Town attorney to
review any of this just so you can get an opinion for how it helps or hurts or works for
Milford on its own, yes that would be your Town’s attorney’s fees. Anything that is done
in conjunction with this group, the actual Charter, any work with the AG’s office, any
kind of advise that is for the collective group that you put in $10,000 or $20,000 that will
be reimbursed from the District. So anything you do on your own, you pay out on your
own. It is more complicated to be doing it the way that we are doing it, because it almost
seems like we are duplicating efforts. It is not that | don’t think that Nashua may not
look out for our interest, but I think at least representing our constituents, we have to
realize that Nashua is looking out for its interest because that is what the citizens are
going to ask us. | have said from the beginning to go down the path that we are going for
whatever reason seems to be not working against us, but certainly making the process
more complicated. If | had had a reason, if someone gave me a reason as to why this has
to be done in August as opposed to December, then maybe | would have some
understanding of why this is going forward. The City, in my opinion, does not have to do
this now, unless you can tell me some reason that they do, either Pennichuck is going to
sell to Philisuburban cousin and so we have to get an offer in. That has been my point
from the beginning. | just think in my opinion it is a much more complicated process
then if we were doing this collectively as one whole group.

Fred Britton responded that | have given you our reasons. Our voters 77% of them want
us to buy Pennichuck and we are going to go out and do that. It has taken a long time to
put this District together and we want to do that and then transfer it to the District. So
one way to look at it is that a lot of the work is done. Chairperson Peterman responded
that when you share that with us, whatever you share with us, in terms of what you can
share with us from Devine, Millimet & Branch, so we don’t duplicate then I think we can
move forward. | think Jay raised some good points and so did everyone else that spoke.
I think that in order to move on tonight, what I think perhaps we can do is go back to our
respective boards to say we are having a discussion about money. We think that we will
need some amount of money from this year’s budget. Let’s use the $50,000 dollars
divided by 14 Towns is $6,000. So we will need approximately $6,000 dollars from this
year’s budget, is this something that we are going to be able to get. Then in going
forward to the next years budget we may need another $6,000, | am just throwing
numbers around. Andrew asked, what happens if a Town doesn’t match? Cynthia stated
you should stick to $5,000 or $6,000, because you are going to have some Towns that
cannot do anything. Chairperson Peterman stated let’s say $5,000. | don’t know how
many of you meet between now and our next meeting, but if you could have that



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 11

discussion with your boards or Councils and see what their feeling is. So it would be
$5,000 from this budget that we are in right now and then perhaps another $5,000 going
forward in the 2004-2005 budget. | am not looking for money from Nashua because
they are going on their own. What all the boards need to know is that Nashua is going to
put an offer on the table. Fred Britton stated Nashua wants to do this by the end of the
month.

Cynthia made the comment on the principal that Nashua is so supportive of this, I think it
is equally important for Nashua to come up with the same $5,000 that the rest of us do,
because there is a very different thing happening between what they are doing just for the
water thing and the formation of this District. Jay agreed and stated that Nashua is
paying a lot in legal fees, but there is nothing in their agreements with their attorney’s
that recommends the District whatsoever. So | don’t see that as a contribution
particularly.

Fred Britton stated he would go ask Nashua for that. | will ask them what they think
about that. Chairperson Peterman stated if they can show that what Devine, Millimet &
Branch, is doing can be shared to offset some of our expenses in other areas, those are
the two questions. Fred stated we have shared the statement work and I think that is a
very good start, but I know we need to share more when we can and if we can share all of
it.

Kevin Waterhouse stated we should stress to the Towns that we would probably need to
start spending some of this money in say October and November if we are able to get the
Charter to the point where it can be reviewed. If not then it would be a matter of looking
at spending money in March of next year it will be in 2003. So this committee really has
to come up with some facilitating organization that can accept the money and spend the
money.

Chairperson Peterman stated good point, but this money that we are looking for would be
to spend, I think October is optimistic, but let’s say November/December, but we do need
some kind of a structure. Mary Jeffery stated if we couldn’t come up with a formal
structure you could have everyone sign that they would do their portion of whatever bills
we did have.

Chairperson Peterman stated that there still has to be someone who is overseeing the
amount or dividing up the bills or collecting the money. Fred stated that right now we do
not have an entity to receive the money, but we have a general idea on how we are going
to spend it. Chairperson Peterman asked is there something within the MOU that we can
amend?

Fred Britton asked, what about Bedford, is Bedford going to be asked to contribute now
just like Nashua? Fred stated that we have shared a $122,000 Rizzo report, we have
shared other information and data and in the long run we are going to share everything
that we have on this costing effort, so | don’t mind. The amount $5,000 is not the issue.
We have done a lot and we have more to do.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 12

Karen stated that she had to make one point the Chip Sullivan money has been for tasks
that this group has assigned. The Rizzo Report and everything Nashua is doing has been
for tasks that Nashua has assigned and with no consultation from this group. Fred stated
then that would be a good exception for Bedford. Chairperson Peterman stated that she is
open and be fair to the communities that have already spent money and to the ones that
we are asking for money from. We do need to make the points that were just made and
see how your boards feel.

Jean Guy asked what the total is that Nashua has spent so far roughly? Fred Britton
stated that with this commitment of $170,000 then we have spent about $450,000.

Chairperson Peterman stated let’s go on with the Charter. Karen sent out the revised
Charter and | have marked on page 15 where we stopped revising. Also there are some
comments if you read it through from Chip Sullivan who reviewed the sections that we
have done so far and he has made some comments and those are in bold per Chip
Sullivan. So the pleasure of the committee is to review what we did at the last meeting or
to move forward.

Jay stated he would like to move forward, but if we could just highlight Chips comments.
Karen stated she would go through them. On page 12 #5, Non-Competition — Chip had
added, he basically says that the District won’t sell water to customers with respect to any
person or firm that has been granted a franchise to operate a water company or in which
any Town, City or District operates a water system and that was one of Jay and Cynthia’s
concerns. Chip added, or unless the District is ordered to provide service to a customer
by any authorized State or Federal official. Basically we will not sell water where
someone has a franchise or in a municipality or a service area that they want to serve or if
you have a municipal water district like, Merrimack Village District. So we will not sell
in those areas, but if we were ordered to provide service by an authorized State or Federal
agency then that would be an exception to that rule. Sometimes the PUC or others have
ordered.

#6 Eminent Domain — We know right now that the bill did not provide for it and we were
trying to grapple with what if we go back to the legislation in the future and Chip said, as
provided from time-to-time under NH law and then we will not have to go back and
change it later.

#7 Establishment of Rates — He stated it all looked good, even #1, which was something
that Mike Scanlon was asking about, could we set-up some credits in years where we had
a surplus of revenue above expenses, to set-up some credits for communities, so if
something you wanted didn’t get into the Capital Improvements program, but your town
really wanted to do it, you could build credits towards doing it over time in those years
where there is a surplus.

Chairperson Peterman asked how about letter h). Karen stated she should have bolded it.
H) to establish discounted rates for the purpose of customer retention and economic



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 13

development. He pointed out that Budweiser has a rate that is different from everybody
else in the District. If you leave that out, we couldn’t continue the Budweiser contract, so
we may not want to offer new contracts like that, but I think one of our goals was to
continue with existing contracts at least for the short run. Chairperson Peterman thought
that was a good point, especially with this particular customer. Jay stated it is similar to
the rates that we used to negotiate with PSNH for industries. Karen stated in a year like
this, we are probably despite to sell some water, no one is watering lawns. Mary asked a
question on letter 1), if it looked like that bucket theory was all right. Back in the minutes
from the last meeting Andrew was going to look up something on the credit system, is
that something that we would plug it in. Andrew stated he would come up with it for the
next meeting. Karen stated it is legal.

Karen stated that Chip added a new #8. Terms and Conditions of Service. The District
shall adopt a tariff establishing the terms and conditions upon which service will be
provided to customers. He said that was an essential part that we left out. Chairperson
Peterman asked what that is about. Karen asked Dennis if he would like to explain.
Dennis stated he hadn’t heard it called a tariff. Karen stated that is what the PUC calls it.
Dennis stated that our accountants and auditors call the monthly or quarterly fees rents. |
am wondering if it is just the same thing, or if it is something like Pennichuck has two
charges, one is a meter rental charge and then they have a usage charge, it maybe
referring to that. | have never heard it called tariff before.  Chairperson Peterman
responded that tariff to me is a tax, but I think we should ask what he means. Karen
asked if she should ask him to clarify the meaning.

Chairperson Peterman stated that basically that is the end of the comments from Chip.
Again | think we should make note that we need to thank him for reviewing this and
adding the comments. So if there are no other comments or questions, then we can go on
to the next session, which is Purchasing.

Karen stated we need to skip back down to #10 — Water Board of Adjustments. We
didn’t finish flushing that out and that is what Dennis brought us.

Chairperson Peterman asked Dennis to explain. Dennis stated he kept it short and sweet
and it basically outlines using the same language that had been in the original section.

a) The District shall establish a Water Board of Adjustments to act upon consumer
interest in all matters that may affect the consumer in the District. (My thought
being that it is a board that they can go to with their problems; it is going to have
some powers.)

b) The Board of Adjustment shall be made up of equal representative from the
BOD, Operations and Water Commissioners. (Dennis explained where he is
now, it is the Town Mgr, the accountant and himself and in order to get anything
done all three have to sign, reason being, you are talking about in many instances
potentially a lot of money so you want complete agreement or it doesn’t work)

c) The Water Board of Adjustments shall have benefit of all experts, facilities
and/or information of the District in carrying out duties of their office. (Basically
they need to have the benefit of all experts, facilities or information in the



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 14

District. Typically when we are dealing with issues we need the water service
people to come in and bring in the records. Many times it is people who want
abatements on a water bill and we don’t go out and read the meters, we have to
trust that our people are telling us the history of that usage, what the meters were,
when the last meter replacement was done, that type of things, so it needs excess
to their experts, facilities, information and their records.

d) The Water Board of Adjustments shall have access to the District’s records.

e) All actions of the Water Board of Adjustments must be authorized by a
unanimous vote of the Board. (Again | think it is important that however it is set-
up that it is a unanimous vote because again you are dealing with giving money
back and in many instances the biggest thing we do is abatements)

f) The Water Board of Adjustments shall have the authority to;

a) Adjust any service bills. (That is one of the things we have people will
tell us that the guys weren’t there that long, we don’t want to pay this
much and that type of thing)

b)  Abate any water rents, (That is the word that our accountants use that is
rents that they charge quarterly)

C) Determine appropriate rate class, (Many times we have people tell us
they should be in a different rate as we have a tier system, you want to
hear what they say about their business, sometimes commercial use is a
little different)

d)  Authorize corrective actions, (Such as meter replacements and things
like that).

Jay stated it reminds him of Zoning too much. Can we call it something like the
Consumer Affairs Board? Chairperson Peterman stated we started out with the Office of
Consumer Affairs, and then after discussion we talked about having it being something
more and that is why we talked about the Zoning Bd of Adjustment. Dennis stated he
didn’t name it. Karen said we decided that the way Connecticut had it written it was that
the District funded an Office of Consumer Affairs where we would have to pay for
attorney’s for the ratepayers to sue us. We decided that that was a little too extreme for
New England. Chairperson Peterman stated any name that you want to name it. Jay said,
how about the Consumer Affairs Board. Fred Britton stated he likes Consumer Affairs in
there.

Karen asked Dennis a question about #b) The Water Board of Adjustment should be
made up of an equal representation from the Board of Directors, Operations and Water
Commissions, are you talking about 6 an even number of people. Dennis would
recommend one of each, but it is up to how they want to do it, it just gets too
cumbersome. It isn’t something that you spend a lot of time on. What we do is the
service people come in and make a recommendation to us and explain what happened and
then we vote to abate. Typically you vote to abate because it was a bad meter reading or
the meter was broken. Karen asked you want this board to have the authority to abate or
simply to recommend? Dennis stated they should have the authority to abate because it
happens a lot; you don’t want to have to go back every single time. Mostly it is a simple
business function. If they don’t vote then it can go to the board of directors. When | say



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 15

no we are not going to lower the bill or you have to pay the bill, then they go to the Board
of Selectmen and then they can override the three of us. Chairperson Peterman stated
that there isn’t anything in here regarding appeals.

Jay stated overall I think the concept is a good one, but the powers are so sweeping that |
think 1 would like to give it some thought and giving it a little bit of process and some
criteria like, when do you adjust rates, what would be the grounds that you do. Dennis
stated that he didn’t put adjust rates. Karen asked Jay, couldn’t this be written as a
separate by-law? Jay stated he would like to look at it a little bit and maybe have Chip
look at it, because the powers are so huge that is being granted to a three-person board
that it could swallow the entire District. It is a lot of power to give a group without at
least defining when, like going back to the Zoning Board analogy this criteria that the
board has to find in order to grant relief. That is what | am looking for. What are the
criteria to be used? 1 think the overall concept is a good one. | would like to think about
how to get that narrowed just a little bit more. Chairperson Peterman stated you could
think about that. Does it actually belong in the Charter itself, which is Karen’s point?
Karen said we can just say according to Policy’s and Procedures as approved by the
District. Chairperson Peterman stated do we need something that says there is an appeal
or is that in there? Karen stated she thought this was the appeal. Chairperson Peterman
stated that Dennis mentioned if their board turns down and adjustment in the service bill
they can appeal to the Board of Selectmen. Do we need any further appeals besides this?
Karen stated they could appeal to the PUC. Chairperson Peterman stated lets think about
appeal; let’s think about criteria whether we need that in here or whether we need that as
a separate Policy & Procedure piece and a name. In the office of consumer affairs they
usually hear other things that go on with customers. Their service is bad, their bills are
not on time, and someone yelled at them, is this the same group of people that do those
kinds of things? Dennis stated that typically they yell at me, not at the accountant and the
Town Manager. Chairperson Peterman stated is this group going to provide regular
customer service. Karen stated this is where you come to make a grievance of any kind,
i.e. somebody yelled at me. Dennis stated this is where you go after you have called the
Operations people and they haven’t fixed your problem, then you want to go to the
Consumer Affairs Board and tell them look I think my meter is wrong. | don’t use this
much water and my meter is wrong. They refuse to replace it. We have a charge if we
replace the meter and we test it and it was wrong you pay $50 as most Towns do. Then
they get mad that the pay $50 three times in the last 5 years so then they come in and
want some relief. The board typically looks at all the information and says we bench
tested the meter three times, you still argue with us, we found that you had a leaking
toilet twice, you used the water, you have to pay or your right the meter was bad.
Chairperson Peterman said what about the catch all phrases like in roman numeral V that
says, such other grievance as deemed, one of those legal phrases. There may be other
things besides the rates and rate questions that people might have. The Consumer Affairs
office deals with a lot of issues.

Dennis stated that the first section does say to act upon consumer interest in all matters
that may affect the consumer. Frank stated that there are some things that you wouldn’t
bring to the Consumer Affairs Board, for example if someone had a complaint against an



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 16

employee for whatever reason that should rightly go to an Operations Board. | wanted to
make sure that there was a distinction being made in terms of the types of things.
Chairperson Peterman stated issues that affect the water, like the water is bad, it has iron
in it, I can’t drink it, and | can’t wash in it, where does that go. Dennis stated that that
should go to the Operations Board. Chairperson Peterman stated if we could just have
one small catch phrase at the bottom. Karen stated and such other grievances would you
say. Kevin Waterhouse stated that is all under letter a) already.

Mary asked then are we saying this #8 is really #10 on page 12. Chairperson Peterman
said yes this is #10. Mary asked is this from Dennis going to replace all of the existing
#10 a,b,c? Fred stated that b was taken out. Fred asked Dennis is that the intention to
replace a and c. Dennis stated the intent was to replace the whole section at the time that
was what we were talking about. We had talked about striking the whole Consumer
Affairs stuff a, b and c. Maybe you want to put one of them back in. Mary said look at
letter ¢). Dennis said that might be your appeals process. Chairperson Peterman said that
would be the appeal and put it back in. Mary said and call it letter g).

Chairman Peterman stated maybe putting letter a) and f) back together. Jay stated he is
taking a couple of steps backwards in thinking. Maybe we really do need an Office of
Consumer Affairs and an Appeals Board. The reason why | am saying this is because
somewhere in this organization there should be a place for someone to go and say my
water is always rusty or our water pressure in our neighborhood is to low and we need
improvement. We need some place where people can make their gripe and make their
complaint and feel that this is a person who is going to help them negotiate this 8 hours a
day. We need to have you talk to so and so, here is the phone number or I will make the
call for you. Maybe it is to go to the Appeals Board. Karen states in which you would
schedule them on the next Agenda.

Chairperson Peterman asked the question, what does Pennichuck do now. | am a
Pennichuck customer | should know this. There must be a customer service number that
I call. So that would be the Office of Consumer Affairs and within that office they would
have the ability to do these other things. Jay stated there would be an Appeals Board and
that office staffs it or refers it. Frank stated that there are two things we are talking about
here. If you have a problem with your bill and you called and said | have a problem here
is the issue the people on the phone in the Operations Group should be able to adjust that
bill as they see fit. Karen stated no. Dennis said your auditors would never let you do
that. Frank said if you double bill someone, someone should say we double billed you
we shouldn’t have double billed you and we will fix it. | expect that from an Operations
Group. If you got a bill and the Operations Group said that is the right thing to do and
you disagree with that that is where this board would come in. Dennis said in business
you really can’t. That bookkeeper or that invoice person just cannot make changes
without authorization.

Cynthia stated the way that it happens in our Town is that we get this list of abatements
once a month. Some of them doesn’t need the end user in front of us for us to appeal
literally it is just bookkeeping, but if there is someone who wants to come in and plead



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 17

their case then they can make an appointment. Fred said there has to be limits placed
upon what someone in an Operations Group can do, but I would think the whole idea of
this is to improve the quality of service for the customer and whatever we can do at the
local level, meaning someone making a phone call in and talking to someone in the
Operations Group and get a change made then that makes sense. If you want to appeal
the decision that is made, then it would go to the Consumer Affairs Board.

Dennis stated | guess | should clarify. If they call our service people and say that the
meter reading is high and our service people go out and find that they read the meter
wrong. They then have to come back and tell the accountants that we need to do
abatement. We do the form. That abatement has to be signed by 3 people, the
accountant, the Town Manager and myself, the reason being that your dealing with
money that is suppose to be collected and because it is collected through the Tax
Collector we warrant the money and she has to have an abatement for that warrant. She
cannot give money back once it has been billed.

Mary Jeffery asked if we would go back to #4 Powers letter n) and insert to assist
member municipalities to acquire, hold, develop, and maintain land and other real estate
and waters for conservation and for compatible active and passive recreational purposes
and to levy charges for such uses, provided that such uses will not harm the quality of
water provided by the District.

Chairperson Peterman said lets move forward in the Charter to #11 Purchasing. All
contracts in excess of five thousand dollars for any supplies, materials, equipment,
construction work or other contractual services shall be in writing and shall be awarded
upon sealed bids or proposals made in compliance with a public notices duly advertised
by publication at least 10 days before the time fixed for opening said bids or proposals,
except for contracts for professional services, when the supplies, materials, equipment or
work can only be furnished by a single party or when the District determines by a 2/3
vote of the District that the aware of such contract by negotiating without public hearing
will be in the best interest of the District. The District may in its sole discretion reject all
such bids or proposals or any bids received from a person, firm or corporation the District
finds to be unqualified to perform the contract, and shall aware such contract to the
lowest responsible bidder qualified to perform the contract.

Dennis suggested raising the amount to $10,000 request for quotes or bids. Frank
suggested that we set an amount or have the BOD and the Representative Board set the
amount. Karen suggested the amount should read TBD. Mike asked about emergency
procedures. Karen suggested we should have it read Emergency purchases as determined
by the CEO.

Frank suggested that where we state award contract to the lowest responsible bidder, to
make sure that the lowest bidder is also qualified to fulfill the contract. Chairperson
Peterman stated we should have the option not to take the lowest bidder and we should
write the language to that affect.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT MINUTES - August 14, 2003- Page 18

Chairperson Peterman went on to #12 Conflict of Interest - In letter a) we will take out
the wording Commission. In letter b) No member, employee or family of the Board or of
the District shall accept or receive, directly or indirectly, from any person, firm or
corporation to which any contract or purchase order may be awarded, by rebate, gift or
otherwise, any money, or anything of value or any promised, obligation or contract for
future reward compensation. Any person who violates any provision of this subsection
may be subject to criminal or civil charges by the District.

Chairperson Peterman asked the commission to please look over #13,14,15 and 16 for the
next meeting.

Chairperson Peterman asked to accept a motion to adjourn.

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. on a motion by Kevin Waterhouse and seconded
by Cynthia Herman. Motion passed unanimously.

Submitted by: Jane O’Brien

# 16186



	AUGUST 14, 2003

